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QUALITY FIRST EDU'CATI,ON TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

The Trustees present their annual réport together with the financial statéments and auditor's report of the
charitable comipany for the period 1 September 2017 to 31 August 2018. The Annual Report serves the
purposes of both a Trustees' Report, and a Directors' Report under company law.

The Quality First Education Trust was established by Belleville Ptimary School, a large, outstanding school in
south west London with over 900 children on two sites.

The Quality First Education Trust was established by Belleville Primary School in 2017. The trust operates four
primary academy schools across south London: Belleville Primary School, Belleville Wix Academy, The Alton
School and Churchfields Primary School. The schools have a combined pupil capacity of 2,055 and had a roli of
1,912 in the school census on 11 October 2018. The principal object of the trust is to provide education to pupils

between the ages of 4 and 11.

Belleville Primary School, Belleville Road, London SW11 6PR
Executive Head: John Grove Headteacher Juniors: Sarah Atherton Headteacher Infants: Mary Lyne Latour;

Headteacher Metéor Site: Jane Ford

Belleville Primary School was established in 1877 and has been an academy since 2011. Belleville is a large,
popular and successful school, judged ‘Outstanding' (Ofsted 2007). It is a designated National Support School,
Teaching School, Maths Hub and Academy Sponsor, with a long history of supporting and improving schools. it
has the largest primary intake in Wandsworth, with four forms of entry plus additional ‘bulge’ classes in some
year groups. The school operates acrass two different sites approximately a mile apart, in the
Clapham/Battersea area of the London Borough of Wandsworth. Belleville has a pupil capacity of 952 and had a

roll of 942 in the school census on 4 October 2018.

Belleville Wix Academy, Wix's Lane, London SW4 0AJ

Headteacher. Seana Henry
Belleville Wix Academy}omed the Trust in August 2017 as a sponsored academy. Belleville Wix is a one and a

half form entry schoal, very close to Clapham Common, in the London borough of Wandsworth. Belleville Wix
shares its site with école de Wix, a French primary school which is annexed to the Lycée Charles de Gaulle in
South Kensington, Belleville Wix runs a one-form- -éntry English stream and the école runs a one-form-entry
French stream. The two schools collaborate to provide a one-form-éntry bilingual stream. Belleville Wix has a
pupil capacity of 365 and had a roll of 313 in the school ‘census on 4 October 2018.

The Alton Schoo!, Danebury Avenue, London SW15 4PD

Headteacher: Ruth Hudson
The Alton School chose to convert to an academy and join the Trust in 2017. The Alton is an inclusive ohe-form-

entry primary school in Roehampton, next to Richmond Park in the Londori borough of Wandsworth. It is home
to a small Resource Base for children with moderate learning difficilties. The Alton has improved very
significantly ovér recent years and its most recent Ofsted mspection in Decembar 2016 judged it to be a ‘Good’
.school. The Alton has a pupil capacity of 269 and had a rolf of 205 in the school census on 4 October 2018.

Churchfields Primary School

Headteacher Tom, Hyndley
‘Churchfields’ chose to convert to an academy and Jomed the Trust in Novémber 2017. Churchfields is a two-

form-entry prlmary school in Beckenham in the London borough of Bromley. it houses a spec1a||st unit for

children with severe/complex Iearmng difficulties, mcludrng social and commumcataon dfff culties. The school's

most recent Ofsted mspechon in May 201 6 Judged it to be a ‘Good’ §chool Churchf elds has 8 pupnl capacity of

469°and had a roll of 452 i in'the school census on4 October 2018

Structure, governance and management
Constitation

The Academy Trust is a company limited by guarantee and an exempt charity. The charitable companys
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QUALITY FIRST EDUCATION TRUST
(A Cormpany Limitéd by Guarantee)

TRUSTEES REPORT (contmued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

memorandum and articles of association afe the primary govérning doturients of the Academy Trust.

The trustees of Quality First Education Trust are also the diréctors of the charitable company for the purpose of
company law.

Details of thé Trustées who sefved throughout the penod are included in the Reference and Administrative
Details .on page 1.

The principal object of the Academy is te provide education to students between the ages of 4 and 11,

Members' liability

Each member of the charitable coimpany undertakes té contribute to the assets of the charitable company in'the
event of it being wound up while they are a member, or within one year after they cease to be a membe#, $uch
amiount as may be required, not exceeding £10, for the debts and Iiablhtles contracted before they ceased to bé

a member.
Method of recruitment and appointment or election of Trustees

The management of the Trust is the responsibility of the Trustees who are elected and co-opted under the terms
of the articles of association and fundmg agreement. The recruitment and succession planning of Trustees must
match Quality First Educatnon Trust visién for the next five years. The skills profile of the Board must reflect the

governance rieeds of the Trust.

The followmg skills categorles set out the broad-range of skills, knowledge or pridr experiences that is expected
to be held across the Board:

Leadership and Policy

Education Performance and Curriculum

Fmance

Risk and Audit

Constltutlonal Governance

-'Strateglc Partnershnps External Relationships and Public Rélationships
Engagements with internal stakeholders

Human Resources

Estates and Property

0. Heaith, safety and safeguarding

il R

S P e ;m

The Quahty First Educatlon Trust (Q1ET) Board requires its Trustees to have & broad range of skills and
previous expenences in order to.be eéffective in governance, The Board. cames out &. SkI"S aldit of Trustees
annually to infarm the recruttment pracess, using the categaries above 1o mform dectsmn -making. The steps
towards rectuiting ahd appointing a new trustee are set out bélow:

1: Cteate and distribute Trustee role specification

A ‘Roles and Responsmmnes document outhnmg the expectations of @ Trustee is cnrculated to' all potenual
candidates. ‘

2. Nomina‘tions

'candtdates fit wnth the trust coach he _andudate ac‘ pnmary pemt of coritact between the trust and the
Page.4




QUALITY FIRST EDUCATION TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (contmued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

candidate, and support contract signing and on-boarding.
3. Decision and appaintment to the Board

Final ratification of a potential appointment is prévided by the overall Board at the subsequent Board meeting.
Once this has heén approved successful candidates can commence as a Tiustee.

Policies and procedures adopted for the induction and training of Trustees

New trustees are inducted into the workings of the trust. Training and induction will depefid on their exparience.
Al inductiori meeting (or series of meetings) is undertaken to provide training on:

. compariy and charity requirements
. educational, Iegal and financial matters
. the values; vision, strategy and objéctives of the trust.

All new trustees are given a tour of at least one of the academies in the group. All trustees are provnded with
copies of the trust policies, procedures, budgéts, plans and other documents that they will need to understand

their role as trustees and directors of the trust.
Trustees may attend professional training courses to allow them to efficiently fulfil their duties. Ongoing training
is encouraged for all trustees to ensure they continue to make an effective contribution and are keeping up to

date with changes in Iegnslatllon

Organis‘ationél structure

The organisational structure of the Academy Trust consists of three levels:

6 The Trust Board, which includes the Exécutive Mead
The Executive team (The Executive Head, Director of Finance and Director of Operattons)
° The Headteachers of the Trust schools

The Quality First Education Trust is governed by a board of directors (Whtch is also the governmg body)
constituted under the fiiemorandum and articles of association. The diféctors are responsnble for énsuring that
high standards of cor, porate governance are mamtamed the difectors exercise their powers and functions with-a
view to fulflllmg a Iargely strategnc leadership fole in the running of the Quality First Education Trust and shall
consider any adwce given by the Executnve Head, addressmg such matters as:

Pohcy development and strategtc devetopmenr
‘Ensunng comphance with legal reqmrements
Ensurmg effective mtemal controls are in operatton

The momtonng of performance
Helpmg the trust to be responswe to the rigeds: of parents, carers and the Commumty,

~Settmg the trust's standards of conduct and value, and
Assessmg and managlng risk

© 5 6 8 6 ¢ o

A full trustees meetlrg is held atleast once a séhool term. In addition thefs are at l€ast mne committee meetmgs
whete most trustees arein; attendance
Teiiné of réference for all su‘b‘ cqmmittees are reviewed ahd 'ag"f"'e’_'ed an'?t,tially.

The Ttust algo hds local governmg bOdleS (iocal governors) that report to ‘the board of trusteés, The
responsnblltttes “of the local govammg bodtes are:

Page’s’




QUALITY FIRST EDUCATION TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (contmued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

Undeftake day-to-day school governarice

Monitor perforinance

Support and challenge the Head teacher and Senior Leadership Team
T6 represent the community

To represent the Trust

¢ © © o o

Connected organisations, including related party transactions

Owing to the nature of the Academy Trust's operations and the composition of the Board of Trustees being

drawn from local public and private sector organisations. It i inevitable that transactions will take place with

organisations in which a member of lhe Board of Trustees may have an interest. All transactions involving such

orgamsatlons are conducted at arm's length and in accordance with the Academy Trust's financial regulations
and normal procuremeht procedures. '

Belleville PTA acts to raise money to improve the school environment far the children of Believille School. Funds
are spent on improving equipment and fagcilities in the School. The PTA is a registered charity (nuriber 270097).
Currently 1 Trustee of the School acts as a PTA Trustee

OBJECTIVES AND ACTIVITIES

Objects and aims
‘The Trust has two principal Objecls set outin its Articles of Assqclétion:

° to advance for the public benefit education in the Unlted Kingdom, in particular but without prejudlce to
the generality of the foregomg by estabhshmg, malntammg, carrying on, managing and developing a
schooal offering a broad and balanced curriculuim;

o to promote for the bénefit of individual$ living in the surrouhding area who have need by-reason of their
age, mﬁrmlly or disability, finaficial hardship or social and economic circumstances or for the public at
large the provision of facilitiés for recreation or other leisure tlme activities in the mlerests of socual
welfare and with the object of i improving the condition of life of the sald mdlwduals

Objéctives, Strategies and Activities

Vision: As a'Trust we havé a relentless: ‘drive for excellence and equallty The way that we as schaols;and-a Trust
seek to provide excellence and equallty is thraugh education. "’

Alms Our Trust aims are that all chlldren
s Are safe

0 Are excellent learners
Q

®

Have exceli lsocnal and emgtional sKills
Achleve andsucceed

Cote gnonlles .The two core pnorltles that are. glven pamcular focus for ongomg contlnuous |mprovement atithe,

‘Quallty First Education Trust are:

. Qualit y First Education: We belleva that all chlldren can lsarn and the bettér the teaching, | thé better
their life chances We seek: to provnde an excellenl broad and balanced quallty first education with a
Pagé 6,
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QUALITY FIRST EDUCATION TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

suitable focus on the core skills of literacy and numeracy. We believe that the quality of an education
system cannot exceed the quality of its teachers. Quality First Education is shorthand for the principle
that all children are entitled to high quality teaching and learning every day in all subjects.

Whatever It Takes: We accept that many children at some stage in their lives will need more than the
quality first education provides, and for these children at these times we will seek to do whatever it
takes to help them. “Whatever it Takes" is whatever time and stpport is required for some children to
ensure they fulfil thair potential — in addition to (not instead of) the Quality First Education they receive.

Together these two core priorities can be seen to represent our philosophy of excellence and equality.

School specific priorities; For the reporting period September 2017 to August 2018 each school in the Trust had
a separate school improvement plan, facusing on areas for development determined by safeguarding priorities,
pupil performance outcomes, the standard of teaching, and specific operational matters. For the coming year we
have developed a consistent format for these plans, ensuring they both draw on and feed into the Trust's overali

plans.

Strateqy: To achieve our aims we apply our school impravement mantra. This is shared with all Trustees as part
of the Trust's improvement plan. The mantra is;

Know where we are going

Recruit, retain and develop excellent staff
Ensure we know what to do

Ensure we know why we are doing the job
Ensure we have excellent skills to do the job

. Ensure we have excellent resources to do the job
. Ensure we do the job with excellence
. Monitor, evaluate and improve

Measures used to assess success: For the reporting period a set of Key Performance Indicators (KPls) were
agreed for all schools in the Trust, as detailed in the ‘achievements and performance’ section of this report. A
‘data dashboard' report is used to capture each school's performance against the KPls. This is submitted by

each headteacher after the end of the academic year.
STRATEGIC REPQRT

ACHIEVEMENTS AND PERFORMANCE

The Trust board monitors the performance of its schools against agreed Key Performance Indicators (KPlIs),
focusing on pupil performance. For the reporting period these were:

. Performance should meet statutory requirements
. Performance should be better than the national average
. Performance should be better than the previous year

These KPis are applied when monilp_ring the following key measures:

Percentage of children achieving at least a “good level of development” at the end of the Early Years

Foundation Stage :

. Percentage of children passing the Phonics screening test _

Percentage of children reaching the expected an;J higher standards in the core subjects at the end of
" Page
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QUALITY FIRST EDUCATION TRUST
(A Company Litited by Guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

Key Stage 1 and at the end of Key Stage'2 i
° For each of these measures data is monitored for all childref, and specifically for disadvantaged
children (using the government's definition).

Headline performance data is included below, There was some inconsistency in previous data 'capture~(Bqure
the trust was established) therefore we are currently still working to analyse the full set of results.

Page 8



QUALITY FIRST EDUCATION TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

Achieving “good level

Passing the Phonics
screening fest ol

~Passing 1he Phonics
screening test at end

> ment” at
Early years and of developm(‘m ,C' of Year 2
- L end of Early Years end of Year | -
phonics screening , o (curulative)
— e — =
2017 | 208 | 5 | 2017 | 2018 | ™| a017 | 2018 | K7
- met " | met met
Belleville Pimary School | 90% | 93% | v 95% | 97% | v | 98% | 98% -
Churchfields Primary 80% | toe | 91% | 0% | x | 95% Ibe
School _ . o . »
The Alton Primary 76% | 88% v 9% | 79% | x tbe
School A o » ’
Belleville Wix Academy | 65% | 75% v 8% | 80% | x | 80% | 80% -
National average 7% | 72% nfa | 81% | 82% | n/a| 92% 92% | n/a

Reaching the
expected standard in
Core subjects at Key | Reading at end of Key

Reaching the
expected standard
in Writing at end of

Redching the
expected standard in
Maths at end of Key

Stage | Stage 1 Key Stage 1 ] Slage |1
: 2017 | 2018 | 5 | 2017 | 2018 | K| 2017 | 2018 | KPB
met met met

Belleville Primary School | '92% | 92% - 87% | 92% | Y | 89% | 93% | ¥
Qhurchﬂelds Primary 779% 80% P 73% 73% ) 80% 76% y
School ‘
the Alton Primary 8% | 90% | v | 7e% | 9% | v | 8% | w0m| v
Schoo! B o _ ]
Bellevile Wix Academy | 90% | 83% X 88% | 76% | x | 85% | 95% |4
National average 76% | 75% | n/a | 68% | 70% |n/a | 75% | 76% | n/a

Redching the
expected standard in
Coreé sybjects at Key | Reading at'end of Key

Reaching the
expected standard
in Wiiting at end of

' Ré{:chihé‘&h@ -
expected standard in
Maths at end of Key

Stage 2 stage 2 Key Stcge 2 Stage 2
017 | 2008 | 5 | 2017 | 2018 | 5 | 017 | 2018 | K7
. met : met | 7 2181 et
Belleville Pamary School | 95% | 94% X siw Taan | x | 5% | 9% | »
Churchfields Primiary o5 | B5% ) e o | oz | o ;
School . ‘ | 84% ‘ ' 5 |
The Alion Primary 72% | 79% v | sam | 7s5% | x | ek | 8% | v
oL — Rl MRS I ; g
Bellevile Wix Academy | 73% | 88% | | 82% | 85% | v | 82% | 88% |
Natinolaveidge | 72% | 7% | /e | 76% | 78% [njo’| 75% | 76% | n/a
Page 9
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QUALITY FIRST EDUCATION TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

Public benefit

The Trustees confirm that they have complied with the duty in section 17 of the Charities Act 2011 to have due
regard to the public benefit guidance published by the Charity Commiission in determining the activities
undeitaken by the charitable company.

Going concern

After making appropriate enquiries, the board of trustees has a reasonable expectation that the academy trust
has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason it
continues to adépt the going concern basis int preparing the financial statements, Further details regarding the
adoption of the going concemn basis can be found in the Statement of Accounting Policies.

Trustees' indemnities

Employees and Trustees are covered by Trustees' and Officers' liability insurance far failings arising from the
performance of their duties that may lead to civil liability. There are no other specific third party indemnities
beyond this which require reporting in the context of section 236 of the Companies Act 2006.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Most of the Quality First Education Trust income is obtained from the Department for Education in the form of
recurrent grants, the use of which is restricted to particular purposes. The grants received from the Department
for Education during the year ended 31 August 2018 and the associated expenditure are shown as restricted
funds in the statement of funds in note 19 to the financial statements.

Financial position

The Quality First Education Trust fund balances at 31 August 2018 were in surplus by £37,080,611 (2017:
£21,314,310). Total restricted funds at 31 August 2018 were in surplus by £35,491,094 (2017: £19,731,779)
represented by the pension deficit, Fixed Asset Fund and the halance on teaching school Unrestricted funds at

31 August 2018 were in surplus by £1, 598,517 (2017: £1,582 ,532).

During the period, ESFA/LA grants totalled £9,483,938 (2017: £4,674 ,594). Other income included within’
restricted funds totalled to £786,710 (2017; £478,143) in respect of the teaching school, Restricted income fund
expenditure totalled £10,770,648 (2017: £5,396,737).

The Trust also received grants for fixed assets from the ESFA. In accordance with the Charities Statement of
Recommended Practice, “Accounting for Reporting by Charities” (SORP 2015), such grants aré shown in the
Statement of Financial Activities as restricted income in the fixed asset fund. The restricted fixed asset fund
balance is reduced by annual depreciation charges over the expected useful life of the assets concerned.

Under the Charities SORP, it is necessary to charge projected deficits on the Local Government Pension
Scheme, which is provided to support staff, to a restricted fund. This results in reducing reserves shown in the
total funds of the Trust. It should be noted that this does not present the Academy with any current liquidity
problem The employer contribtitions since June 2016 have increased and it is éxpected that they will continué to
increase fuither, Overall the academy has a healthy balance sheet and cashflow and wili be using reserves to
maintain the current assets and also to invest back into the school in the form of additional resourcés and
facilities both in the long term and the short term in conjunction with the school development plari and school

aums

The Difector of Finance has been reviewing the financial processes. The trustees through the Finance and
Premises Committee receive financial progress reports throughout the year and compare against budgets
Page 10



QUALITY FIRST EDUCATION TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued) )
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

submitted to the Education and Skills Funding Agency. The Finance and Premises Committee also review longer
term financial models (up to 5 years) to plan and organise resources most effectively to fulfil the aims of the

schoals.

The assets were used exclusively for providing education and the associated services to the pupils of the
schools. The deficits in the Local Government Pension Schemes (LGPS) are recognised on the balance sheet in

accordance with the provision of FRS102.

Key financial perforimance indicators

The Key Performance indicators are variations from Budget Forecasts. The Forecast sets out a structured and
balanced three yéar plan and deviation from this would indicate a favourable or adverse financial position.
Financial performance against budget is monitored monthly and reported to the Finance and Premises
Committee quarterly. Specific analysis is made in relation to salary costs against the budgeted staff

establishment.
Principal risks and uncertainties

Risks are reviewed annually by the Trustees. The Trustees have assessed the major risks to which the multi-
academy trust (MAT) is exposed, in partlcular those related to the operations and finances of the MAT, and are
satisfied that systems and procedures are in place to mitigate our exposure to the major risks. The principal risks

and uncertainties facing the academy trust are:

The Next Ofsted inspection results in a lower grading than the current "Qutstanding”. Mitigation - the schoal's
performances are regularly monitored by the SLT, Trustees and external advisors. The Head and Trustees
monitor changes in Ofsted criteria and approach t6 identify any changes required to internal processes, repomng

and momtormg

Risk to the schools' ability to sustain high standards and results due to reduced central funding and/or
mefﬂaency/madequate financial control by the schools' leadership. Mitigation - The government has already
forewarnéd of reduced future fundmg for school. The Trust mitigates this risk (which is outside school control) by
staying abreast of government plans and through thorough advanced financial planning on a 3-year cycle. The
Schools have policies and procedures in place to prevent fraud and mis-management, ehsure value for money is
achieved and takes into consideration national guidance and recommendations. The Trust's Finance Director
has day-to- day responsibility for the Trust's financial affairs and monitors income and expenditure with the Head

on a monthly basis.

Risk that the pension schemes are in significant deficit and that employer contributions increase and draw
heavily on Trust funds, compromising their ability to investment in improverment. Mmgatlon = the pension scheme
is devolved to the LGPS & TPS, employer contrlbutlons decnded on the basis of actuarial records and outside
§chool control. Central administration of the scheme enstires correct employer contnbutnons are defined.

Risk of falling demand and uptake of school places with restltant reduction in school funding. Mitigation - LA
momtormg of birth ratés and forecastlng of demand for pramary places (currently pmjects steady rise in démand

for primary school places in the Bofough for several years to come) Monltonng at' school level of uptake of -

places vacancies ahd changes in'school population demographncs Malntenance of hlgh standards ‘and uesults
ensures ongoing high demand for places.

Risk of unconholled major natural event that affects school eg. fire, fisod. Mitigation - by its naturé the likelinood
‘of this risk cannot be influenced. Response measures in place control impact. The Trust faintsins a Disaster

Recovery/Busmess Contmuuty Plan and runs an annudl cascadé contact test. The Finance Dlrector i

responsible for ensuring an effective Insurance palicy Is in place.

Risk that the Trust fails to comply wnth Ieglslatnon and regulat;ons (eg Health and Safety, Emp!oyment law, Data
Protect:on etc) Mitigation - Trustaes, SLT and Finance Director - stay abreast of - changes in legislation and

Page 11



QUALITY FIRST EDUCATION TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

regulations and new requirements on the Trust. A range of policies to ensure compliance are in place and
regularly reviewed by the Trustees. The Trust buys in external advice and/or outsources to appropriately skilled
bodies where necessary eg. local authority HR.

Risk of damage to the Trust's reputation arising from any cause eg. poor Ofsted report, actions of Trustees or
staff, falling standards/results, adverse publicity, high profile complaint or incident. Trustees and Leadership
demand high standards of conduct (including for themselves) and pursue high standards and achievement levels
for pupils. Achievement against targets and progress and results achieved by pupils is regularly monitored by
SLT, Trustees and SIP(s). The trust has carried out a skills review to ensure the correct set of skills are available

on the Board.

Investment policy and performance

The Trust's aim is to minimise risk with any investments; the policy is therefore to invest reserves in low risk
short term bank deposits. No reserves are currently invested as the priority since incorporation was to ensure
sufficient working capital and to date all cash deposits have been held in instantly available deposit accounts.

Reserves policy

The Trustees have reviewed the reserves of the Trust. This review encompassed the nature of income and
expenditure streams, the need to match them with commitments and the nature of reserves.

The policy of the Trustees is to maintain a level of reserves that will be adequate to provide a stable basis for the
continuing activity of the Academy Trust having in mind such factors as fluctuations in anticipated pupil numbers,
whilst ensuring that excessive funds are not ‘accumulated. This is assessed over a three year budget period.
large fluctuations due to pupil numbers are not anticipated and the policy is to maintain end of year reserves no
less than 50% of one month's salary costs which is equal to £370,106. Reserves are currently higher than the
target at £1,589,517 but in the next three years the school will have planned deficits which will be funded from

reserves,

The leve| of reserves will be kept under review by the Trustees.

Fundraising

No school within the MAT has employed an external furidraiser. All funds raised for each school were carried out
by the PTA which aims to raise funds from parents and carers of current parents and operate at arms length
from the schools. The PTA ocasionally makes donations for specific purposes. No complaints were received as

a result of thé PTA'S fundraising activity.

PLANS FOR FUTURE PERIODS

The Trust consisted of four schools at 31 August 2018, We are in discussion with a number of other schools that
are considering converting to academies and joining our Trust.

We have oné .sponsored academy in the Trust (Bellewlle Wix Academy) which remains our current priority in
terms of school improvement, however we remain keeri to sponsor further schools in the future shouid there be

an appropriate opportumty

We‘ have recently met with representatives of the Office of the Regional Schools Commissicner (Departmént for
Education) for an annual MAT review, to discuss priarities, capacity and futuie plans,
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QUALITY FIRST EDUCATION TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

Pay policy for key management personnel

The pay of all staff within the Quality First Education Trust is set within the parameters of the Quality First
Education Trust Pay Policy. The performance of all staff is then monitored and evaluated against agreed
objectives in-line within the Q1ET Performance Management Policy.

The pay of senior staff in the multi-academy trust including the CEO is reviewed annually and is considered by
the Trust Finance and Premises Committee and the staffing commiittee who make a recommendation to the

Quality First Education Trust Board.

The salary ranges of staff have heen established by directors following a procéss local and regional comparison.

The pay of all heads of school and senior leadership $taff is set with in pay bands that are detérmined by the size
and phase of the school and by factors such as comiparisons of similar roles locally and the availability of suitably

qualified and experienced staff.

All. posts within the structure have detailed job descriptions which are subject to review from time to time, in
consultation with staff, to reflect the changing needs of the school. Job descriptions are written with due regard to

enabling staff to maintain a reasonable work/life balance.

Trade union facility time

No employees were relevant union officials during the period for the purposes of collective bargaining.

Disclosure of information to auditors

Insofar as the Trustees are aware:
there is no relevant audit information of which the charitable company's auditors are unaware, and

that Trustees have taken all the steps that ought to have been taken as a Trustee in order to be aware
of any relevant audit information and to establish that the charitable company's auditors are aware of

that information.

Auditors

The auditors, haysmacintyre, have indicated their willihngness to continue in dffice. The Trustees will propose a
motion re-appointing the auditors at a meeting of the Trustees.

The Trustees' Report was aipproved by order of the Board of Trustees, as the company directors, on 19
December 2018 and sighed an its behalf by:

N ASIN

Juﬁan Coningham
Chair of Trustees
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QUALITY FIRST EDUCATION TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

Scope of Responsibilit_y

As Trustees, we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that Quality First Education Trust has
an effective and appropriate system of control, financial and otherwise. However such a system is designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can provide only reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board of Trustees has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the Execitive Head teacher, as Accounting
Officer, for ensuring financial controls conform with the requirements of both propriety and good financial
management and in accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in the funding
agreement between Quality First Education Trust and the Secretary of State for Education. They are also
responsible for reporting to the Board of Trustees any material weaknesses or breakdowns in internal control,

Governance

The information on governance included here supplements that described in the Trustees' Report and in the
Statement of Trustees' Responsibilities. The full Board of Trustees has formally met 4 times during the
year.There were alsa 10 Sub-Committee meetings. Attendance during the year at mestings of the Board of

Trustees was as follows:
Trustee Meetings attended Out of a possible

Sarah Atherton

Simon Bailey

Brian Ledbetter

Olivier Huez

John Grove, Head Teacher
Fiona Wilkins

Juliah Coningham, Chair of Trustees
Hilary Clarke

Rachael Dupont

Liz Stoyel, Deputy Chair
Geoff Morris

Karen Parkinson

Fergal Spencer

NWWhBDODaN AN
NWWh DS adhaidxon

Key changes in the composition of the board of trustees: 2017-18 was our full first year as a Multi Academy
Trust. There have been a number of changes to the board of trustees in order to ensure thé appropriate skills,
expertise and capacity to fulfil the duties of the MAT board. Four of the trustees who were in place at the
beginning of the year had agreed to fulfil transitional rolés on the board. These trustees stepped down and were
replaced by newly appointed trustees in the first half of the year.

Governance revjews;

During the year Trustees have:

° Undertaken a self-assessment using the NGA's Skills Audit for MAT Trustees

e Attended and actively contributed to a risk workshop to identify, agree, document and assess our key
strategic risks and their mitigations.

° Agreed link roles for individual Trustées including safeguarding, health & safety and risk, with key
monitoring résponsibilities.

o Undertaken school visits, attended INSET and attended local governing body meetings.

° Reviewed and discussed sources of cutrent evidence about the Trust schools mcludmg written reports

from external experts; in 2017-18 these reviews mcluded
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QUALITY FIRST EDUCATION TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (continued)

- performance data, monitored via our developing “dashboard” report

“ a two-day in-depth review of each school, led by a current Ofsted inspector

- a ane-day end of year review of each school, led by a current Ofsted inspector

- a one-day safeguarding audit of each school, let by an objective external consultant
- internal and external audit reports on each school.

° Monitored, reviewed and challenged all aspects of the Trust's performance and operations, via full
Board meetings and through its three sub-committees (Finance and Premises Comimittee; Teaching
and Learning Committee; Staffing and Safeguarding Committee). Each committee has a designhated
Chair and agreed terms of reference., '

The Finance and Premises Committee is a sub-committee of the main Board of Trustees. Its terms of reference
include the remit to consider all financial issues rising from the School improvement plan, to prepare and to
approve the-annual budget and to monitor income and expenditure.

Attendance at meetings in the year was as follows:

Trustee Meetings attended Out of a possible

Brian Ledbetter 4

Simon Bailey (appointed January 2018)
Geoff Morris

John Grove, Head Teacher

Julian Coningham, Chair of Governors
Rachel Dupont

Fergal Spencer (appointed January 2018)
Liz Stoyel

S Wh DWW
DD DN W

Review of Value for Money

As Accounting Officer, the Executive Head teacher has responsibility for ensuring that the academy trust delivers
good value in the use of public resources. The Accouhting Officer understands that value for money refers to the
educational and wider societal outcomes achieved in return for the taxpayer resources received.

The Accounting Officer considers how the academy trust's use of its resources ‘has provided good value for
money during each academic year, and reports to the Board of Trustees where value for money can be
improved, including the use of benchmarking data where appropriate. The Accounting Officer for the academy
trust has delivered improved value for money during the year by:

° Ensuring there is comprehensive monitoring of spending and budgéts to ensure that all spending is
within the school's long term financial plan. This monitoring is undertaken by the Business Manager,
Head teacher, School Trustees, arid Internal and External Auditors.

° We have structured purchasing policies and guidelines. In addition a scheme of delegation clearly
states individual levels of authority and accountability.

° A Risk Register records all the risks faced by the school, financial and otherwise. This register is
reviewed annually by School Trustees.

® Effective Purchasing - we have a dedicated member of staff responsible for all purchasing within the

school. Having a dedicated purchasmg officer allows the academy to seek best value on purchases.
Several large contracts are awarded through contracts pracured by Wandsworth Council. Such
economies of Scale credte a better negotiating position and better value contracts. These contracts
inclide those awarded for cleamng, catering and photocapying.

° Other large contracts are téndered for by the school in a timely manner. These contracts have recently
included those for the provision of insurance and audit services,
o We discuss purchasing with other local academies at termly review meetings. These meetings

facilitate discussion relating to the control of expenditure and best value for money.
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QUALITY FIRST EDUCATION TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (continued)

e Income generation: The school takes opportunities to generate additional revenue, most notably
through the lettings of school premises and some non grant funded Teaqhihg School activities. The
additional revenue is used by the school to fund spending on educational activities.

The Purpose of the System of Internal Control

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk of
failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives; it can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an ongoing process designed ta identify
and prioritise the risks to the achievement of academy trust policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the
likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently,
effectively and economically. The system of internal control has been in place in Quality First Education Trust for
the year 1 September 2017 to 31 August 2018 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial

statements.

Capacity to Handle Risk

The Board of Trustees has reviewed the key risks to which the academy trust is exposed together with the
operating, financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The Board of
Trustees is of the view that there is a formal ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing the
academy trust's significant risks, that has been in place for the year 1 September 2017 to 31 August 2018 and
up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements. This process is regularly reviewed by the

Board of Trustees.
The Risk and Control Framework

The academy trust's system of internal financial control is based on a framework of regular management
information and administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegation and

accountability. In particular, it includes:

e comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and periodic financial reports
which are reviewed and agreed by the Board of Trustees; ‘
T e regular reviews by the Finance and Premises Committee of reports which indicate financial

performance against the forecasts and of major purchase plans, capital works and expenditure
programmes;

setting targets to measure financial and other performance;

clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines.

delegation of authority and segregation of duties;

identification and management of risks.

o 0 ‘e o

The Board of Trustees has considered the néed for a specific internal audit function and has decided to appoint an
internal auditor. Each school within the MAT has received two internal audit visits during the year.

The internal auditor's role includes giving advice on financial matters and performmg a range of checks on the
academy trust's financial systems. In particular the checks carried out in the current period included:

<. carrying out a termly audit on & revolving basis: testing a sample expenditure and income; checking
and signing off petty cash and the Fund account checking the payroll and staff contracts; providing a
report and recommendahon of his fi indings.

On a regular basis, the auditor reports to the Board of Trustees through the Finance and Premises Committee
on the operation of the systems of control and on the discharge of the Board of Trustees' financial

responsibilities.
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QUALITY FIRST EDUCATION TRUST-
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT {continued)

Review of Effectiveness

As Accounting Officer, the Executive Head teacher has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the
system of internal control. During the year in question the review has been informed by:

o the wark of the internal auditor,

o the work of the external auditors;
the work of the executive managers within the academy trust who have responsibility for the

development and maintenance of the internal control framework.
The Accounting Officer has been advised of the implications of the result of their review of the system of internal
contral by the Finance and Premises Committee and a plan ta ensure continuous improvement of the system is

in place.

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees on 19 December 2018

Julian Coningham John Grove
Chair of Trustees Accounting Officer
19 December 2018
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QUALITY FIRST EDUCATION TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

_ STATEMENT ON REGULARITY, PROPRIETY AND COMPLIANCE

As Accounting Officer of Quality First Education Trust | have considered my responsibility to notify the academy
trust Board of Trustees and the Educatioh & Skills Fundirig Agéncy (ESFA) of material irregularity, impropriety
and non-compliance with terms and conditions of all funding received by the academy trust, under the funding
agreement in place between the academy trust and the Secretary of State for Education. As part of my
consideration | have had due regard to the requirements of the Acadernies Financial Handbook 2017.

I confirm that | and the academy trust Board of Trustees are able to identify any material irregular or improper
use of funds by the academy trust, or material non-compliance with the terms and conditions of funding under
the academy trust's funding agreement and the Academies Financial Handbook 2017.

I confirm that no instances of material irregularity,Aimproprie(y or funding non-compliance have been discovered
to date. If any instances are identified after the date of this statement, these will be notified to the Board of
Trustees and ESFA.

’ e
)Ll
.,:’:'") J1A%S ,UM”W
N
John Grove

Accounting Officer
19 December 2018
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QUALITY FIRST EDUCATION TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

STATEMENT OF TRUSTEES' RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

The Trustees (who are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law) are
responsible for preparing the Trustees' Report and the financial statements in accordance with the Annual
Accounts Direction issued by the Education & Skills Funding Agency, United Kingdom Accounting Standards
(United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and applicable faw and regulations.

Company law requires the Trustses to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under company law

the Trustees must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair

view of the state of affairs of the charitable company and of its incoming resources and application of

resources, including its income and expenditure, for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the

Trustees are required to:

° select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,

observe the methods and principles of the Charities SORP 2015 and the Academies Accounts

Direction 2017 to 2018;

o make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material

departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

° prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that
the charitable company will continue in business.

The Trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the charitable company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position
of the charitable company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies
Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and hence for
taking reasonablé steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Trustees are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the charitable company applies
financial and other controls, which conform with the requirements both of propriety and of good financial
management. They are also responsible for ensuring grants received from ESFA/DfE have been applied for

the purpdses intended.

The Trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information
included on the charitable company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements may differ from legdisfation in other jurisdictions.

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees on 19 December 2018 and signed on its behalf by:

T, g

Juhan Coningham
Chair of Trustees
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QUALITY FIRST EDUCATION TRUST
(A Gompany Limited by Guarantee)

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF QUALITY
FIRST EDUCATION TRUST

Opinion

We have audited the financlal statements of Quality First Education Trust (the 'academy trust’) for the year
ended 31 August 2018 which comprise the Statement of Financial Activities incorporating tncome and
Expenditure Account, the Balance. Sheet, the Statement of Cash Flows and the related riotes, including a
summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their
preparation is applicable law, United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice), including Financial Reporting Standard 102 'The Financial Reporting Standard applicable
in the UK -and Republic of Ireland’, the Charities SORP 2015 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2017 to
2018 issued by the Education and Skills Funding Agency.

In our opinion the financial statements:

. give a true and fair view of the state of the academy trust's affairs as at 31 August 2018 and of its
incoming resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure for the year
then ended; :

o have been praperly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice; and

o have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2008, the Charities
SORP 2015 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2017 to 2018 issued by the Education and Skills
Funding Agency.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with international Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable
law. Our respaorisibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors' responsibilities for the audit
of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the academy trust in accordance with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the United Kingdom,
inciuding the Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient ahd apprapriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

We have hothing to report in respect of the following matteré in relation to which the 1SAs (UK) require us to
report to you where:

° the Trustees' use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial
statements is not appropriate; or
e the Trustess have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that

may cast significant doubt about the academy's ability to coritinue to adopt the going concern basis of
accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are
authorised for issue.
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QUALITY FIRST EDUCATION TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF QUALITY
FIRST EDUCATION TRUST

Other information B

The Trustees are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included
in the Annual Report, other than the financial statements and our Auditors' Report thereon. Qur opinion on the
financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in
our report, we do not express any form of asstrance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material
inconsistencies or apparent material misstaternents, we are required to determine whether there is a material
misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are

required to report that fact.
We have nothing to report in this regard.
Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, hased on the wark undertaken in the course of the audit:

° the information given in the Trustees' Report for the financial year for which the financial statements
are prepared is consistent with the financial statements.
. the Trustees' Report has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of our knowledge and understanding of the academy and its environment obtained in the course of
the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Trustees' Report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006
requires us to report to you if, in our apinion:

® adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

° the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

° certain disclosures of Trustees' remuneration specified by law are not made; or

. we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of trustees

As explained more fully in the Statement of Trustees' Responsibilities, the Trustees (who are also the directors of
the academy for the puiposes of company law) are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements
and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view; and for such internal control as the Trustees determinig
is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from materlal mlsstatement whether

due to fraud or error.

In preparing the fi nancial statements, the Trustees are responsnble for assessrng the academys ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, .as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting uniess the Trustees either intend to liquidate the academy or to cease operations, or

have ho realistic alterhative but to do so.
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QUALITY FIRST EDUCATION TRUST
(A Conipany Limited by Guarantee)

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF QUALITY
FIRST EDUCATION TRUST

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are ta abtain reasonable-assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an Auditors' Report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is hot a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggrégate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial
Reporting Council's website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our
Auditors' Report. ,

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the academy trust's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16
of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the academy trust
those matters we are required to state to them in an Auditors' Report and for no other purpose. To the fullest
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the academy trust and
its members, as a hody, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

! /a-cﬁ’ ‘\_ﬁ"f
Tracey Young (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of

haysmacintyre

Statutory Auditors

10 Queen Street Place

London '

EC4R 1AG

9 De,@@wv""—f 2015
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QUALITY FIRST EDUCATION TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANTS' ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO QUALITY
FIRST EDUCATION TRUST AND THE EDUCATION & SKILLS FUNDING AGENCY

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 11 October 2017 and further to the requiremerits of
the Education & Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) as included in the Academies Accounts Direction 2017 to 2018,
we have carried out an engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether the expenditure disbursed and
income received by Quality First Education Trust during the year 1 September 2017 to 31 August 2018 have
been applied to the purposes identified by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities

which govern them.

This report is made solely to Quality First Education Trust and the ESFA in accordance with the terms of our
engagement letter. Qur work has béen undertaken so that we might state to Quality First Education Trust and
the ESFA those matters we are reqmred to state in a report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than Quality First Education Trust
and the ESFA, for our work, for this report, or for the conclusion we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of Quality First Education Trust's accounting officer and the reporting
accountants

The Accounting Officer is responsible, under the requirements of Quality First Education Trust's fundiig
agreement with the Secretary of State for Education dated 1 Octaber 2011 for Belleville Primary Schaol, 11 July
2017 for Belleville Wix Academy, 25 July 2017 for Alton School and 1 November 2017 for Churchfields Primary
School, and the Academies Financial Handbook extant from 1 September 2017, for ensuring that expenditure
disbursed and income received is applied for the purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions
conform to the authorities which govern them,

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession's ethical
guidance and are to aobtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the
requirements of the Academies Accounts Direction 2017 to 2018. We report to you whether anything has come
to our attention in carrying out our work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and
income received during the year 1 September 2017 to 31 August 2018 have not been applied to purposes
intended by Parliament or that the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

Approach

We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Academies Accounts Direction 2017 to 2018 issued by
the ESFA. We performed a limited assurance engagement as defined in our engagement letter.

The objective of a limited assurance engagemient is to perform such procedures as to obtain information and
explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on

regularity.,
A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scopé than a reasonable assurance engagement and

consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that
might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagément. Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion.

Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and propriety of the
academy's income and expenditure.

The work undertaken to draw to our conclusion includes:

. Assessment of the control environment operated by the academy trust.

. Walkthrough testing of controls to ensure operational effectiveness.

. Substantive testing on a sample of expenditure items, ensuring expenditure is in accordance with
the funding agreement and appropriately authorised.

. Detailed testing on a selection of credit card statements and expense claims.
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QUALITY FIRST EBUCATION TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANTS' ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO QUALITY
FIRST EDUCATION TRUST AND THE EDUCATION & SKILLS FUNDING AGENCY (continued)

> Review of minutes, bank certificates and related party declarations provided by Trusteés and
senior management.

Conclusion

In the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggests that in all material respects the
expenditure disbursed and income received during the year 1 September 2017 to 31 August 2018 have not been
applied to purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which

govern them.

S‘mocw«;ﬁf/Q

hays htyre
Reporting Accountants
10 Queen Street Place
London

EC4R 1AG

Date: I q D‘LC_M_}’ -ZQ ) ?
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QUALITY FIRST EDUCATION TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES INCORPORATING INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

INCOME FROM:

Donations and capital grants
Charitable activities:
Funding for the acadeimy
trust's educational operations
Teaching schoals
Other trading activities
Investments
Other income

TOTAL INCOME

EXPENDITURE ON:

Raising funds

Charitable activities;
Academy Trust educational
operations
Teaching schools

TOTAL EXPENDITURE

NET BEFORE OTHER
RECOGNISED GAINS AND
LOSSES )

Actuarial gains/(losses) on
defined benefit pension
schemes

NET MOVEMENT IN FUNDS

RECONCILIATION OF FUNDS:

Total funds brought forward

TOTAL FUNDS CARRIED
FORWARD

Restricted

Unrestricted  Restricted fixed asset Total Total

funds funds funds funds funds

2018 2018 2018 2018 2017

.Note £ £ £ £ £
3 44894  (392,000) 16,310,745 15963639 10,074,512

4
554,936 9,483,938 - 10,038,874 4,954,578
59,309 786,710 - 846,019 754128
5 461,679 . ] 461,679 128,444
6 509 . - 509 2
144,277 ] . 144,277 48,972
1265604 9,878,648 16,310,745 27,454.997 16,860,636
87,468 ; . 87,468 78 280
1138109 10,299,805 773430 12211344  5.696,837
33042 470,843 ) 503,885 659,488
8 1258619 10,770,648 773430 12,802,697 6,434,605
6,985  (892,000) 15,537,315 14,652,300 10,426,031
23 ; 1,114,000 - 1,114,000 624,000
6985 222,000 15,537,315 15766,300 11,050,031
1,582,532 (1,927,000) 21668779 21,314,311 10,264,280
37,080,611

1589517  (1,705,000) 37,196,094
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QUALITY FIRST EDUCATION TRUST

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)
REGISTERED NUMBER: 07768645

BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 AUGUST 2018

Note

FIXED ASSETS
“Tangible assets 14
CURRENT ASSETS
Stocks 15
Debtors 16
Cash at bank and in hand
CREDITORS: amounts falling due within

one year 17

NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES
Defined benefit pension scheme liability 23

NET ASSETS INCLUDING PENSION
SCHEME LIABILITIES

FUNDS OF THE ACADEMY

Restricted funds:
Restricted income funds 18
Restricted fixed asset funds 18

Restricted funds excluding pension liability
Pension reserve

Total restricted funds
Unrestricted funds 18

TOTAL FUNDS

2018
£ £
37,196,094
22,973
380,622
2,004,926
2,408,521
(715,004)
) 1,693,517
38,889,611

(1,809,000)

37,080,611

104,000
37,196,094
37,300,094
(1,809,000)
35,491,094
1,589,517

37, 080 611

(1,952,000)

2017
£ £
21,658,779
6,436
451,960
1,653,454
2.111,850
(504,318)
1,607,532
23,266,311
(1,952,000)
21,314,311
25,000
21,658,779
21,683,779

19,731,779
1,582,532

21,314,311

The financial statements on pages 25 to 52 were approved by the Trustees, and authorised for issue, on 19

December 2018 and are signed on their behalf, by:

sy

J

Julian Coningham
Chair of Trustees
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QUALITY FIRST EDUCATION TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

Cash flows from operating activities
Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Dividends, interest and rents from investments
Purchase of tangible fixed assets

Capital grants from DfE Group

Net cash provided by/(used in) investing activities

Change in ¢ash and cash equivalents in the year
Cash and cash equivalents brought forward
Vel

Cash and cash equivalents carried forward
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Note

20

21

2018 2017
£ £
323,373 403,777
509 2
. (14,765)
27,590 13,666
28,099 (1,097)
351,472 402,680
1,653,454 1,250,774
2,004,926

1,653,454




QUALITY FIRST EDUCATION TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

1.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1.1

1.2

1.3

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted (which have been applied consistently,
except where noted), judgments and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set out below.

Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements of the academy trust, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have
heen prepared under the historical cost convention in accordance with the Financial Reporting
Standard Applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102), the Accounting and Reporting by
Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice gpplicable to charities preparing their accounts in
accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS
102) (Charities SORP (FRS 102)), the Academies Accounts Direction 2017 to 2018 issued by ESFA,
the Charities Act 2011 and the Companies Act 2006.

Quality First Education Trust constitutes a public benefit entity as defined by FRS 102,

Going concern

The Trustees assess whether the use of going concern is appropriate, i.e. whether there are any
material uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of
the academy to continue as a going concern. The Trustees make this assessment in respect of a
period of at least one year from the date of authorisation for issue of the financial statements and
have concluded that the academy trust has adequate resources to continue in operational existence
for the foreseeable future and there are no material uncertainties about the academy trust's ability to
continue as a going concern, thus they continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in
preparing the financial statements.

Income

All income is recognised once the academy has entitlement to the income, it is probable that the
income will be received and the amount of income receivable can be measured reliably.

Grants are included in the Statement of Financial Activities on a receivable basis. The balance of
income received for specific purposes but not expended dunng the period is shown in the relevant
funds on the Balance Sheet. Where income is received in advance of entitlement of receipt, its
recognition is deferred and included in creditors as deferred income. Where entitlement occurs
before income is received, the income is accrued.

General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the Statemant of Financial Activities in the year for
which it is receivable and any abatement in respect of the penod is deducted from income and
recognised as a liability.

Capital grants are recognised when there is entitlement and are not deferred over the life of the
asset on which they are expended. Unspent amounts of capital grant are reflected in the balance in
the restricted fi xed asset fund.

Donations are recognised on a re¢eivable basis where receipt is probable and the amount can be
réliably measured.

Other income, including the hire of facilities, is recognised in the penod in which it is receivable and
to the extent the goods have been provided or on completion of the service,
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QUALITY FIRST EDUCATION TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

1.4 Expenditure

1.5

1:6

Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic
benefit to a third party, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in
settlement and the amount of the obligation can be measured reliably. Expenditure is classified by
activity. The costs of each activity are made up of the total of direct costs and shared costs,
including support costs involved in undertaking each activity. Direct costs attributable to a single
activity are allocated directly to that activity. Shared costs which contribute to more than one activity
and support costs which are not attributable to a single activily are apportioned between those
activities on a basis consistent with the use of resources, Central staff costs are allocated on the
basis of time spent, and depreciation charges allocated on the portion of the asset's use.

Expenditure on raising funds includes all expenditure incurred by the academy to raise funds for its
charitable purposes and includes costs of all fundraising activities events and non-charitable trading.

Expenditure on charitable activities are costs incurred on the academy's educational operations,
including support costs and those costs relating to the gavernance of the academy appointed to

charitable activities.
All'expenditure is inclusive of irrecoverable VAT.

Tangible fixed assets and depreciation

All assets costing more than £5,000 aré capitalised and are carried at cost, net of depreciation and
any provision for impairment.

Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the
government or from the private sector, they are included in the Balance Sheet at cost and
depreciated over their expected useful economic life. Where there are specific conditions attached
to the funding requmng the continued use of the asset, the related grants are credited to a restricted
fixed asset fund in the Statement of Finacial Activities and carried forward in the Balance Sheet.
Depreciation on the relevant assets is charged directly to the restricted fixed asset fund in the
Statement of Financial Activities. Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with unrestricted
funds, depreciation on such assets is charged to the unrestricted fund,

Depreciation is provided on all tangibie fixed assets at rates calculated to write off the cost of these
assets, less their estimated residual value, overthelr expected useful lives on the following bases:

Leasehold property - 2%
Furniture and fixtures - 25%

A review for lmpalrment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying
value of fixed assets and their recoverable amounts are recogmsed as impairments. Impairment
losses are recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities.

Stocks

Stocks are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value after making due allowance for
obsolete and slow-moving stocks.
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QUALITY FIRST EDUCATION TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

1.7

1.8

1.9

Debtors

Trade and other debtors are recognised at the settlement amount after any trade discount offered.
Prepayments are valued at the amount prepaid net of any trade discounts due.

Cash at Bank and in hand

Cash at bank and in hand includes cash and shart term highly liquid investments with a short
maturity of three months or lass from the date of acquisition or opening of the deposit or similar
account,

Liabilities and provisions

Liabilities and provisions are recognised when there is an obligation at the Balance Sheet date as a
result of a past event, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required in settlement,
and the amount of the settlement can be estimated reliably. Liabilities are recognised at the amount
that the academy anticipates it will pay to settle the debt or the amount it has received as advanced
payments for the goods or services it must provide. Provisions are meastired at the best estimate of
the amounts required to settle the obligation. Where the effect of the time value of money is
material, the provision is based on the present value of those amounts, discounted at the pre-tax
discount rate that reflects the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount js
recognised within interest payable and similar charges.

1.10 Financial instruments

The academy only holds basic financial instruiments as defined in FRS 102. The financial assets and
financial liabilities of the academy and their measurement basis are as follows:

Financial assels - trade and other debtérs are basic financial instruments and are debt inslrumehts
measured at amortised cost as detailed in note 16. Pr’epayments are not financial instruments.
Cash at bank is classified as a basic financial instrument and is measur‘ed at face value.

Financial liabililies - trade creditors, accruals and other creditors are financial instruments, and are
meastired at amortised costs as detailed in note 17. Taxation and social security are not included in
the financial instruments disclosure definition, Deferred income is not deemed to be a financial
liability, as the cash settlement has already taken place and there is an obligation to deliver services
rather than cash or another financial instruments.

1.11 Taxation

The academy is considered to pass the tésts set out in Paragfaph 1 Schedule 6 of the Finance Act

12010 and therefore it meets the defi nition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes

Accordingly, the academy is potentlany exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital gains
received within categories covered by Chapter 3 Part 11 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section
256 of the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains are

applied exclusively to charitable purposes.
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QUALITY FIRST EDUCATION TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

1.12 Pensions

Retirement benefits to employees of the academy trust are provided by the Teachers' Pension
Scheme ("TPS") and the Local Governments Pension Scheme (‘LGPS"). These are defined benefit

schemes.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated so as to spread the cost of
pensions over employees' working lives with the academy in such a way that the pension cost is a
substantially level percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are
determined by the Government Actuary on the basis of quadrenmal valuations using a prospective
unit credit method. As stated in note 23, the TPS is a muiti-employer scheme and there is
insufficient information available to use defined benefit accounting. The TPS is therefore treated as
a defined contribution scheme for dccounting purposes and the contributions recognised in the

period to which they relate.

The LGPS is a funded scherne and the assets are held separately from those of the academy trust
in separate trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair value and
liabilities are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and discounted
at a rate equivalent to the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of equivalent term
and currency to the liabilities. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennially and are
updated at each Balance Sheet date. The amounts charged to operating surplus are the current
service costs and the costs of scheme introductions, benefit changes, settlements and curtailments.
They are included as part of staff costs as incurred. Net interest on the net defined benefit
liability/asset is also recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities and comprises the interest
cost on the defined benefit obligation ‘and interest income on the scheme assets, calculated by
multiplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the beginning of the period by the rate used to
discount the benefit obligations. The difference between the interest income on the scheme assets
and the actual return on the scheme assets is recognised in other recognised gains and losses.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recagnised gains and losses.

1.13 Fund accounting

Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of
the charitable objects of the academy at the discretion of the Trustees.

Designated funds comprise unrestricted funds that have been set aside by the Trustees for
particular purposes. The aim and use of each designated fund is set out in the hotes to the financial

statements.

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes
imposed by funders where the asset acquired or created is held for a specific purpose.

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds recelved with restrictions imposed by the
funder/donor and include grants from the Department for Education Group
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QUALITY FIRST EDUCATION TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

1,

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

1.14 Critical accounting estimates and aréas of judgment

Estimates and judgments are cantinually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the

circumstances.
Critical accounting estimates and assumptions:

The academy trust makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting
accounting estimates and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results.
The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a
number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions, The
assumptions used in determining the net cost (income) for pénsions include the discount rate. Any
changes in these assumptions, which are disclosed in note 23, will impact the carrying amount of the
pension liability. Furthermore a roll forward approach which projects results from the latest full
actuarial valuation performed at 31 March 2016 has been used by the actuary in valuing the
pensions liability at 31 August 2018. Any differences between the figures derived from the roll
forward approach and a full actuarial valuation would impact on the carrying amount of the pension

liability.
Critical areas of judgment:

In the view of the trustees in applying the accounting polices adopted, no judgements were required
that have a significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements nor do any
estimates or assumptions made carry a signifcant risk of material adjustiment in the next financial

year.

1.15 Conversion to an Academy Trust

The conversion from state maintained schools to an academy trust involved the transfeﬁ of
identifiable assets and liabilities and the operation of the schools for £nil consideration. The
substance of the transfer is that of a gift and it has been accounted for on that basis as set out

below.

The assets and liabilities transferred on conversion from Churchfields Primary School to the
academy trust have been valued at their fair value. The fair value hads been derived based on that of
equivalent items. The amounts have been recognlsed under the appropriate balance sheet
categories, with a corrésponding amount recognised in Dohations — transfer from local authority on
conversion in the Statement of Financial Activities and analysed under uhrestricted funds, restricted
general funds and restncted fixed assets funds. Further details of the transaction set out in note 23.
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Q'UALIT'Y FIRST EDUCATION TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANC|AL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

2. GENERAL ANNUAL GRANT (GAG)

Under the funding agreement with the Secretary of State the acadeniy was subject to limits at 31 August
2018 on the amotint of GAG that could be carried forward from one year to the next. An amount equal to
12% of GAG could be carried forward, of which up to 2% could be used for general recurrent purposes,
with any balance being available for premises/capital purposes.

The academy has not exceeded these limits during the year ended 31 August 2018.

3. INCOME FROM DONATIONS AND CAPITAL GRANTS

Restricted
Unrestricted Restricted  fixed asset Total Total
funds funds funds funds funds
2018 2018 2018 2018 2017
£ £ £ £ £
Donations 25,775 - - 25775 . 34,311
Capital Grants - - 27,590 27,590 13,666
Transfer from local authority on
conversion 19,119 (392,000) 16,283,155 15,910,274 10,926,535
44,894 (392,000) 16,310,745 15,963,639 10.,9.74,512
Total 2017 405846  (576,000) 11,144,666 10,974,512

4.  INCOME FROM CHARITABLE ACTIVITIES

Unrestricted  Restricted Total Total
funds funds funds funds
2018 2018 2018 2017
£ £ £ £
Funding for Academy's operational activities o= 9,483,938 9,483,938 4,674,594
Other educational income 554,936 - 554,936 279,984
Teaching school’ 59,309 786,710 846,019 754,128

614245 10270648 10,884,893 5,708,706

Total 2017 555,060 5152737 5,708,706
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QUALITY FIRST EDUCATION TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

FUNDING FOR ACADEMY'S EDUCATIONAL OPERATIONS

Unrestricted  Restricted Total Total
funds funds funds funds
2018 2018 2018 2017
_ £ £ £ £
DfE/ESFA grants
General Annual Grant (GAG) - 7,956,823 7,956,823 4,017,511
Start-up grants ' - 25,000 25,000 50,000
Other EFA grants - 573,572 573,572 134,083

- 8555395 8555395  4.201,594

Other government grants
Local authority grants - revenue . - 928,543 928,543 473,000

- 928,543 928,543 473,000

Other funding

- - - ~

- 0483938 9483938 4,674,594

Total 2017 . 4674534 4674594

5. OTHER TRADING ACTIVITIES

Unrestricted  Restricted Total Total

funds funds funds funds

2018 2018 2018 2017
£ £ £ £ _
Hire of facilities 405,122 - 405,122 90,264
School uniform sales 56,557 - 56,557 26,345
Other income - - - 11,835
61679 - 461679 126,444

Total 2017 128,444 . 128,444

Page 34



QUALITY FIRST EDUCATION TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

6. INVESTMENT INCOME

Investment income

Total 2017

Unrestricted  Restricted Total Total
funds funds funds funds
2018 2018 2018 2017 -

£ £ £ £
509 - 509
2 - 2
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QUALITY FIRST EDUCATION TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

7. CHARITABLE ACTIVITIES

DIRECT COSTS - EDUCATIONAL OPERATIONS

Wages and salaries

National insurance

Pension cost

Pension income

Depreciation

Educational supplies

Staff development

Educational consultancy

School visits and trip expenses
Teaching school (excluding salaries)

SUPPORT COSTS - EDUCATIONAL OPERATIONS

Wages and salaries
Natignal insurance
Pension cost

Pension finance cost
Recruitment and support
Maintenance of premises and equipment
Cleaning '
Rates

Utilities

Insurance

IT costs

Security and transport
Catering

Bank interest and charges
Office costs

Professional costs

Other support costs

OTHER EXPENDITURE

Governance costs
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Total Total

funds funds

2018 2017

£ £

5,728,478 2,816,035
625,382 242,672
1,038,100 430,642
- 2,000
745,840 411,697
419,120 174,206
42,416 12,991
- 22,643
84,936 74,799
503,885 382,317
9,188,157 4,570,002
931,421 497,481
127,888 45176
684,412 349,623
58,000 37,000
8,194 26,325
158,511 102,701
197,324 85,419
30,329 10,230
170,451 66,299
91,520 37,021
93,571 78,506
20,436 22,546
593,071 257,565
4,491 4,337
212,170 53,088
56,359 35,851
72,559 11,014
3,510,707 1,720,182
12,698,864 6,290,184
16,365 66,141
6,356,325
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QUALITY FIRST EDUCATION TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

8, EXPENDITURE

Staff costs Premises  Other costs Total Total
2018 2018 2018 2018 2017
£ £ £ £ £
Expenditure on raising
funds . - 87,468 87,468 78,280
Funding for Academy's ’
educational activities:
Direct costs 7,391,960 - 1.796,197 9,188,157 4,568,002
Support costs 1,743,721 556,615 1,210,371 3,510,707 1,722,182
Governance costs - - 16,365 16,365 66,141
9,135,681 556,615 3,110,401 12,802,697 6,434,605
Total 2017 4,383,629 290,961 1,760,015 6,434,605
9. NET MOVEMENT IN FUNDS
This is stated after charging:
2018 2017
£ £
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets:
- owned by the charity 745,840 411,697
Auditors remuneration - audit 12,250 10,000
4,115 2,900

Other fees payable to the auditor
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QUALITY FIRST EDUCATION TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

10. STAFF COSTS
a. Staff costs

Staff costs were as follows:

2018 2017
£ £
Wages and salaries 6,576,684 3,220,953
Sdcial security costs 753,270 287,848
Qperating costs of defined benefit pension schemes 1,722,512 780,265
9,052,466 4,289,066
Apprenticeship levy 14,176 7,195
Agency staff 69,039 85,368

19,135,681 4,381,629

b. Staff numbers
The average number of persons employed by the academy during the year was as follows:

2018 2017

No. No.
Teachers 117 59
Educational support 157 53
Administration and management 19 16
Premises 6 4
299 132

Average headcount expressed as a full time equivalent:

2018 2017

No. No.
Teachers 100 53
Educational support 87 25
Administration and management 47 12
Premises 5 3
209 93

c. Higher paid staff
The number of employees whose employee benefits (excluding employer pénsion costs) exceeded

£60,000 was: .
2018 2017
No. No.
In the band £60,001 - £70,000 1 2
In the band £70,001 -'£80,000 2 0
In the band £100,001 - £410,000 1 0
In the band £110,001 - £120,000 0 1
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" QUALITY FIRST EDUCATION TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

10.

11,

STAFF COSTS (continued)

In the band £120,001 - £130,000 1 0

These employees paiticipated in the Teachers' Pension Scheme. During the year ended 31 August 2018
pension contributions for these staff amounted to £70,437 (2017 - £49,405).

Key management personnel
Remuneration and benefits paid to key management personnel amounted to £735,090 (2017 - £777,366).

CENTRAL SERVICES
The academy has provided the following central services to its academies during the year:

Teaching staff

L]

] Support staff

° Educational supplies
° Other costs

The academy charges for these services on the following basis:
Pupil numbers in each school was used to allocate all of the above costs.

The actual amounts charged during the year were as follows:

2018 201

£ £
Belleville Primary School 378,611 -
Belleville Wix Academy _ 121,235 -
Alton School 83,349 -
Churchfields Primary School 174,526 -

757,721
Total _
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QUALITY FIRST EDUCATION TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

12,

13.

14.

TRUSTEES' REMUNERATION AND EXPENSES

One or more Tristees has been paid remuneration or has received other benefits from an employnient
with the academy trust. The Principal and other staff Trustees only receive remuneration in respect of
services they provide undertaking the roles of principal and other staff members under their contracts of
employment, and not in respect of their role as Trustees. The value of Trustees' remuneration and ather
benefits was as follows:

2018 2017
£ £
John Grove - Head Teacher Remuneration 120,000-125,000 115,000-120,000
Pension contributions paid 20,000-25,000 10,000-15,000
Sarah Atherton Remuneration 20,000-25,000 65'000‘70,000
Pension contributions paid 0-5,000 10,000-15,000
Geri Burke Remuneration 30,000-35,000
Pension contributions paid 5,000-10,000

During the year ended 31 August 2018, no Trustees received any reimbursement of expenses (2017 -
nil).

TRUSTEES' AND OFFICERS' INSURANCE

The academy trust has opted into the Department for Education’s risk protection arrangement (RPA), an
alternative to insurance where UK govemment funds cover losses that arise. This scheme protects
trustees and officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on
academy business, and provides cover up to £10,000,000. It is not possible to quantify the Trustees and
officers mdemnlty elemenit from the overall cost of the RPA scheme (2017 - cover was £10m)

TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS
Leasehold Furniture and

property fixtures Motor vehicles Total
£ £ £ £

Cost or valuation
At 1 September 2017 23,085,933 150,985 42,690 23,279,608
Transferred on conversion 16,283,155 S - 16,283,155
At 31 August 2018 30,369,088 150985 42,690 39,562,763
Depreciation B
At 1-September 2017 1,453,143 124,996 42,690 1,620,829
Charge for the year 733,105 12,735 - 745,840
At 31 August 2018 2186248 137,731 42,680 2,366,669
Net book value - B 7
At 31 August 2018 37,182,840 13,254 - 37,196,004
At 31 August 2017 21,632,790 25,989 - 21,658,779
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QUALITY FIRST EDUCATION TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantée)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

15, STOCKS
2018 2017
£ £
Finished gdods and goods for resale 22,973 6,436
16, DEBTORS
201 2017
£ £
Trade debtors - 5,492
VAT due 202,395 40,383
Other debtors 12,199 371,535
Prepayments and accrued income 166,028 34,550
380,622 451,960
17. CREDITORS: Amounts falling due within one year
2018 2017
£ £
Trade creditors 6,359 -
Other taxation and social security 151,617 128,467
Other creditors - 2,000
Accruals and deferred income 557,028 373,851
715,004 504,318
2018 2017 .
£ £
Deferred income
Deferred income at 1 September 2017 170,102 182,100
Resources deferred during the year 267,138 170,102
Amounts released from previous years (170,102) (182,100)
Deferred income at 31 August 2018 267,138 170,102

At the Balance Sheet date the acadeiy trust had received grants in advance for the folldwing year.
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QUALITY FIRST EDUCATION TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

18. STATEMENT OF FUNDS

Unrestricted funds
General Funds

Restricted funds

General Annual Grant (GAG)
Other ESFA grants

Local authority grants
Teaching School

Start-up grants

Pension reserve

Restricted fixed asset funds

ESFA grant
Fixed asset fund

Total restricted funds

“Total of funds

Balance at 1

September Gains/  Balance at 31
2017 Income Expenditure (Losses)  August 2018
£ £ £ £ £
1,582,532 1,265,604  (1,258,619) - 1,589,517
Balance at 1
September Gains/  Balance at 31
2017 Income Expenditure  (Losses)  August 2018
£ £ £ £ £
- 7,956,823  (7,956,823) - -
- 573,572 (573,572) - -
. 928,543 (928,543) - -
. 786,710 (682,710) - 104,000
25,000 25,000 (50,000) - -
(1,952,000)  (392,000)  (579,000) 1,114,000 (1,809,000)
(1,827,000) 9,878,648 {10,770,648) 1,114,000 (1,705,000)
- 27,590 (27,590) - -
21,658,779 16,283,155 (745,840) - 37,196,094
21658779 16310745  (773.430) - 37,196,094
19,731,779 26,189,393 {11,544,078) 1,114,000 35,491,094
21,314,311 27,454,997 (12.80‘2.69%) 1,114,000 37,080,611

The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows
-General Annual Grant was received from the ESFA towards the academy's activities.
-Other ESFA grants were received t6 cover the costs of rates, free school meals, pupil premium and

sports.

~Local authority grants consist mainly of SEN arid early yéars grants.
-Teaching -School grants consist of grants from the National Teaching College for Scfiools Direct

Programme and the Collaborative Fund.
- Start-up grant was received in respect of Churchfields Primary School joining the MAT.

- The Fixed Asset Fund covers the costs of the charity's fixed assets.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

18.

STATEMENT OF FUNDS (continued)

ANALYSIS OF ACADEMIES BY FUND BALANCE
Fund balances at 31 August 2018 were allocated as follows:

Total Total
2018 2017
£ £
Belleville Primary Schaol 1,426,238 1,205,605
Belleville Wix Academy 230,654 246,720
Alton School ) 105,558 155,207
- Churchfields Primary School (68,933) -

Total before fixed asset fund and pension reserve 1,693,517 1,607,532

37,196,094 21,658,779
(1,809,000)  (1,952,000)

37,080,611 21,314,311

Restricted fixed asset fund
Pension reserve

Total

The following academy is carrying a net deficit on its portion of the funds as follows:

Name of academy Amount of deficit

£
Churchfields Primary School 68,933
tThis was the academy's first year within the MAT and had additional costs in that period.
The MAT is taking the following action to return the school to surplus:
The School is expecting lower costs in 2018/189 and is budgeted to make a surplus in 2018/14.
ANALYSIS OF ACADEMIES BY COST
Expenditure incurred by each academy (excluding depreciation) during the year was as follows:
Teaching and )
educational Other costs
support staff Other support Educational  excluding Total Total
costs staff costs supplies  depreciation 201 2017
£ £ £ £ £ £
‘Belleville Primary ‘ ‘
School 3,150,028 706,433 147,525 1,395,807 5,399,793 5,805,343
Belleville Wix o ' , _
Academy 1,184,842 259,456 149,796 560,489 2,154,583 99,867
Alton Schaol 1,143,447 333,751 41668 . 232765 1,751,631 117,698
Churchfields. : . , L
Primary School 1,464,938 197,041 68,306 262,847 1,993,132 -

Central costs 448,705 247,040 11,826 50,147 757,718 -
' 7,391,960 1,743,721 419,121 2,502,055 12,056,857 6,022,908
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18. STATEMENT OF FUNDS (continued)

STATEMENT OF FUNDS - PRIOR YEAR

Unrestricted funds

Designated funds - -
Teaching School
General funds

Restricted funds

General Annual Grant
(GAG)

Other ESFA grants

Local authority grants

Teaching Schaal

Start-up grants

Pension reserve

Restricted fixed asset funds

ESFA grants
Land and buildings on
transfer

Total restricted funds

Total of funds

Balance at
1 September Transfers Gains/  Balance at 31
2016 Income Expenditure infout (Losses)  August 2017
£ £ £ £ . £
43,601 - - (43,601) - _ -
1,050,595 1,139,233 (650,898) 43,601 - 1,682,531
1,094,196 . 1,139,233 (650,898) - - 1,582,531
Balance at
1 September Transfers Gains/ Balance at 31
2016 Incame Expenditure infout (Losses)  August 2017
£ £ £ £ £

- 4,017,511 (4,017,511) - - -

- 134,083 (134,083) - - -

- 473,000 (473,000) - . -

- 478,143 (478,143) - . -

- 50,000 (25,000) - - 25,000
(1,731,000)  (576,000)  (269,000) - 624,000  (1,952,000)
(1,731,000) 4,576,737 (5,396,737) - 624,000 (1 .927.606)

14,936 13,666 (28,602) - - -
10,886,147 11,131,000  (358,368) - - 21,658,779
10,001,083 11144666  (386,970) - - 21,658,779

9,170,083 15,721,403  (5,783,707) - 624,000 19,731,779
10,264,279 (6,434,605 ] 624,000 21,314,310

e erev————
e

16,860,636
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A CURRENT YEAR 12 MONTHS AND PRIOR YEAR 12 MONTHS COMBINED POSITION IS AS FOLLOWS:

Unrestricted funds

Designated funds -
Teaching School
General funds

Restricted funds

General Annual Grant
(GAG)

Other ESFA grants

Local authority grants

Teaching School

Start-up grants

Pension.reserve

Restricted fixed asset funds

ESFA grants

Land and buildings on
transfer

Total of funds

Balance at
1 September Transfers Gains/  Balance at 31
2016 Income Expenditure infout (Losses)  August 2018
£ £ £ £ £
43601 1265604 (1,258619)  (43,601) : 6,985
1,050,595 1,139,233  (650,898) 43,601 - 1582531
1,004,196 2,404,837  (1,909,517) - - 1,589,516
Balance at
1 September Transfers Gains/  Balange at 31
2016 Income Expenditure infout (Losses)  August 2017
£ £ £ £ £ £

- 11,974,334 (11,974,334) ) ; ;

. 707,655  (707,655) ] ) ]

- 1401543 (1,401.543) - . .

- 1264,853 (1,160,853) ; ) 104,000

- 75,000 (75,000) - - -
(1,731,000)  (968,000)  (848,000) - 1,738,000 (1,809,000)
(1,731,000) 14,455,385 {16,167,385) - 1,738,000  (1,705,000)

14,936 13,666 (28,602) - ; -

) 27,590 (27.590) - . -
10,886,147 27,414,155  (1,104,208) . . 37,196,094
10,901,083 27,455,411  (1,160,400) - - 37,196,094
9,170,083 41,910,796 (17,327,785) - 1738000 35491094

44,315,633 [19.237,302) -~ 71738000 37,080610

10,264,279
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19. ANALYSIS OF NET ASSETS BETWEEN FUNDS

Unrestricted

funds
2018
£
Tangible fixed assets -
Current assets 1,589,517
Creditors due within one year -
Pension scheme liability -

Restricted
funds
2018

£

819,004
(715.004)
(1,809,000)

Restricted
fixed asset
funds
201

£

37,196,094

Total

funds

2018
£

37,196,094

2,408,521
(715,004)
(1,809,000)

1,589,517

(1,705,000)

ANALYSIS OF NET ASSETS BETWEEN FUNDS - PRIOR YEAR

37,196,094

37,080,611

Unrestricted  Restricted Restricted Total
funds funds fixed asset funds
funds
2017 2017 2017 2M7
£ £ £ £
Tangible fixed assets - - 21,668,779 21,658,779
Current assets ' 2,086,850 25,000 - 2,111,850
Creditors due within one year (504,319) - - (504,318)
Provisions for liabilities and charges - (1,952,000) - (1,852,000)
(1,927,000) 21,658,779 21,314,311

1,582,531

20. RECONCIL!ATION OF NET MOVEMENT IN FUNDS TO NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING

ACTIVITIES

Net income for the year (as per Statement of Financial Activities)

Adjustment for:

Depreciation charges

Dividends, interest and rents from investments
(Increase)/decrease in stocks

Decreasel(inciease) in debtors

Increase in creditors

Capital graits from DfE and other capital income
Definéd benefit pension scheme obligation inherited

Defined benefit pension scheme cost less contributions payable

Defiried benefit pension scheme finance cost
Fixed assets acquired on conversion

Net cash provided by operating activities
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201
£

14,652,300

745,840
(509)
(16,537)
71,338
210,686
(27,590)
392,000
521,000
58,000

(16,283,155)

2017
£

10,426,031

411,697
(2)
6,858
(329,685)
188,544
(13,666)
576,000
232,000
37,000
(11,131,000)

323,373

403,777
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21,

22,

23.

ANALYSIS OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
2018 2017
£ £

Bank and cash in hand 2,004,926 1,653,454

Total 2,004,926 1,663,454

CONVERSION TO AN ACADEMY TRUST

On 1 October 2017 Churchfields Primary School converted to academy trust status under the Academies
Act 2010 and all the operations and assets and liabilities were transferred to Quality First Education Trust

from London Borough of Bromley for nil consideration.

The transfer has been accounted for as a combination that is in substance a gift. The assets and liabilities
transferred were valued at their fair value and recognised in the Balance Sheet under the appropriate
headings with a corresponding net amount recognised as net gains in the Statement of Financial Activities
incorporating Income and Expenditure Account as Bonations - transfer from local authority on conversion

The following table sets out the fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities transferred and an
analysis of their recognition in the Statement of Financial Activities incorporating Income and Expenditure

Account.

Restricted
Unrestricted  Restricted  fixed asset Total
funds funds funds funds
£ £ £ £
Leasehold land and buildings - - 16,283,155 16,283,155
Budget surplus/(deficit) on LA funds 19,119 - - 19,119
LGPS pension (deficit) ’ - (392,000) - (392,000)

Net assets/(liabilities) 19,119  (392,000) 16,283,155 15,910,274

PENSION COMMITMENTS

The academy's employees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teacher's Pension Scheme for
England and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff; and two Local Government Pension Schemes
(LGPS) for non-teaching staff, which are managed by the London Borough of Wandsworth and the
London Borough of Bromley. All are Multi-Employer Defined Benefit Pension Schemes.

The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2012 and of the LGPS 31
March 2016.

There were no outsianding or prepaid contributions at either the beginning or the end of the financial year.
Teachers' Fension Scheme

Introduction

The Teachers' Pensron Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributary, defined benefit scheme, governed by
the Teachers' Pensuons Regulatuons (2010) and, from 1 April 2014, by the Teachers’ Penslon Scheme
Regulatlons 2014. Membershlp is automatic for.full-time teachers in academies and, from 1 January 2007,
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23.

PENSION COMMITMENTS (continued)

automatic for teachers in part-time emplayment following appointment or a change of contract, although
they are able to opt out.

The TPS is an unfunded multi-employer defined benefits pension scheme governed by The Teachers'
Pensions Regulations 2010 (as amended) and The Teachers' Pension Scheme Regulations 2014 (as
amended). Members contripute on a “pay as you go" basis with contributions from members and the
employer being credited to the Exchequer. Retirement and other pension benefits are paid by public funds
provided by Parliament,

Valuation of the Teachers’ Pension Scheme

The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was carried out as at 31 March 2012 and in accardance with' the
Public Service (Vauations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014. The valuation report was published
by the Department of Education on 9 June 2014. The key elements of the valuation and subsequent
consultation are:

o employer contribution rates set at 16.48% of pensionable pay, inclusing a 0.08% employer
administration charge.

« total scheme liabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for
service to te effective date of £191,500 milliion, and notional assets (estimated future contributions
tagether with the notional investments held at the valuation date) of £176,600 million giving a notional
income past service deficit of £14,900 million

s« anemployer cost cap of 10.9% of pensionable pay will be applied to future valuations

o the asumed real rate of return is 3.0% in excess of prices and 2% in excess of earnings. The rate of
real earnings growth is assumed to be 2.75%, The assumed nominal rate of return is 5.06%.

This employer rate will be payable until the completion and outcome of the next actuarial valuation which
is being prepared as at 31 March 2016. Her Majésty's Treasury published draft Directions for the TPS on
6 September 2018 to allow the Department for Education to finalise this valuation, Early indications from
the valuation are that the amount employers will be required to pay towards the scheme may increase
substantially from September 2019.

There are also indications that the protections in the new cost cap mechanism required by the Public
Service Pensions Act 2013 mean public sector workers will get improved pension benefits for employment
over the period April 2019 to March 2023.

The employer's pension costs paid to TPS in the period amounted to £517,000 (2017 - £430,642).

A copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation is on the Teachers' Pensions website
{www.teacherspensions.co.uk/news/employers/2014/06/publication-of-the-valuation-report. aspx).

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is a multi-employer pension scheme. The trust has
accounted for Its contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined contribution scheme. The trust has set
out above the information available on the scheme

Local Government Pension Scheme

The LGPS is a funded defined benefit scheme, with assets held in separate trustee-administered funds.
The total contribution made for the year énded 31 August 2018 was £553,000 (2017 - £ 146,623), of which
employer's contributions totalled £421,000 (2017 - £195,000) and employees' contributions ‘totalled
£132,000 (2017 - £63,000). The agreed contribufion rates for future years for the London Borough of
Wandsworth Pensian Scheme are 19% for employers and 7.5% for employees and 17.3% for employers
and between 5.5% and 7.5% for employees in the London Borough of Bromley Pension Scheme.
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23, PENSION COMMITMENTS (continued)

Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in the
event of academy closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities would be met by the
Department for Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013.

Principal actuarial assumptions at the Balance Sheet date (expressed as weighted averages):

. , 2018 2017
Discount rate for scheme liabilities 2.70 % 2.60 %
Rate of increase in salaries 3.80 % 420 %
Rate of increase for pensions in payment / inflation 2.30 % 270 %

2.30 % 2.70 %

Inflation assumption (CP1)

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in mortality rates.
The assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are:

'

2018 2017
Retiring today
Males 242 24.4
Females 26.1 26.0
Retiring in 20 years .
Males 26.6 26,7
Females 28.5 28.3
At 31 August At 31 August
Sensitivity analysis - effect on present value of total '
obligations 2018 . 2017
£000's £000's
Discount rate +0.1% (48) (1562)
Discount rate -0.1% 58 167
Mortality assumption - 1 year ihcrease 56 199
Mortality assumption - 1 year decrease (66) (192)
CPl rate +0.1% 44 48
CP| rate -0.1% - (49) (48)
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23.  PENSION COMMITMENTS (continued)

The academy's share of the assets in the scheme was:

Fair value at Fair value at
31 August 31 August
2018 2017
£ £

Equities . 3,566,000 2,972,000
Gilts 190,000 187,000
Corporate bonds 552,000 418,000
Property 181,000 . 123,000
Cash and other liquid assets ' 27,000 28,000
Muilti-asset funds 726,000 358,000
Other 101,000 -
Total market value of assets 5,343,000 4,086,000

The actual return on scheme assets was £218,000 (2017 - £336,000).

The amounts recognised in.the Statement of Financial Activities incorporating Income and Expenditure
Account are as follows:

2018 : 2017
. £ £
Current service cost (942,000) (425,000)
Admin expenses (4,000) (2,000)
interest cost (54;000) (37,000)
Total (1,000,000) (464,000)

Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligation were as follows:

2018 2017

£ £
Opening defined benefit obligation 6,038,000 3,988,000
Transferred in oh existing academies joining the trust 776,000 1,640,000
Current service cost 942 000 425,000
Interest cost 175,000 91,000
Employee contributions 132,000 63,000
Change in assumptions } (896,000) (154,000)
Estimated benefits paid plus unfunded net of transfers in (15,000) (15,000)
Closing defined benefit obligation 7,152,000 6,038,000

Page 50



QUALITY FIRST EDUCATION TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

23,

24,

25.

PENSION COMMITMENTS (continued)

Movements in the fair value of the academy trust's share of scheme assets:

2018 2017
: £ £
_Opening fair value of scheme assets 4,086,000 2,257,000
Transferred in on existing academies joining the trust 384,000 1,064,000
interest on assets . 121,000 54,000
218,000 470,000

Return on assets less interest

Employer contributions 421,000 185,000
Employee cont.ributions ) 132,000 63,000
Estimated benefits paid plus unfunded net of transfers in ' (15,000) (15,000)
Administration expenses (4,000) (2,000)
Closing fair value of scheme assets 5,343,000 4,086,000

MEMBERS' LIABILITY

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company in the
event of it being wound up while he/she is a member, or within one year after he/she ceases to be a
member, such amount as may be required, not exceeding £ 10 for the debts and liabilities contracted

before he/she ceases to be a member.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Owing to the nature of the academy trust and the composition of the Governing Body being drawn from
local public and private sector organisations, transactions may take place with orgamsattons’ in which the
academy has an interest. All transactions involving such organisations are conducted in accordance with
the requirements of the AFH and with the trust's financial regulations and normal procurement procedures
relating to connected and related party transactions.

No related party transactions took place in the period of account, other than certain trustees' remuneration
and expenses already disclosed in note 12.
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26. TEACHING SCHOOL TRADING ACCOUNT

2018 2018
_ £ £
INCOME
DIRECT INCOME
Grants from National Teaching College 786,710
OTHER INCOME
Other contracts : 59,309
TOTAL INCOME . 846,019
EXPENDITURE
Other direct costs 503,885
OTHER EXPENDITURE
Allocation of overheads 211,867
TOTAL EXPENDITURE 715,752
SURPLUS FROM ALL SOURCES : 130267
TEACHING SCHOOL BALANCES AT
1 SEPTEMBER 2017 )
54,640
TEACHING SCHOOL BALANCES AT 184,907
31 AUGUST 2018 e
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201
£

598,688

155,440

478,143

221,345

2017

754,128

699,488

54,640

54,640



